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P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S 

(9:30 a.m.) 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Good morning. Please be 

seated, I'm going to go on the record. I'd l i k e you 

to make a b r i e f appearance. A l l r i g h t , the discovery 

conference w i l l come to order. We'll take appearances 

at t h i s time. We'll take them i n any order; l e t ' s 

s t a r t at t h i s table. 

MR. MILLS: Your Honor, my name i s Chris 

M i l l s with the f i r m of Slover & Loftus i n Washington, 

and I'm appearing here on behalf of the c i t i e s of East 

Chicago, Hammond, Gary, and Whiting, Indiana, 

c o l l e c t i v e l y known as the Four City Consortium. 

MR. HEALEY: Good morning. Your Honor. I 

am Tom Healey of the fi r m of Oppenheimer Wolff and 

Donnelly, out of t h e i r Chicago o f f i c e . I am here 

today on behalf of the Wisconsin Central Limited and 

the Elgin, J u l i e t , and Eastern Railway Company. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. ITTHOFF: Good morning. Your Honor. I 

am Steve Uthoff with Coniglio & Uthoff and I represent 

Rail Bridge Terminals. 
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MR. COBURN: Good morning. Your Honor. 

David Coburn with Steptoe & Johnson, for CSX. 

MR. HARKER: Drew Harker, Arnold & Porter, 

f o r CSX. 

MR. NORTON: Gerald Norton, Harkins 

Cunningham, Conrail. 

MR. MAYO: Good morning, Your Honor. 

George Mayo, Hogan & Hartson, on behalf of the 

Canadian Pacific parties. 

MS. BRUCE: Good morning. Your Honor. 

P a t r i c i a Bruce of Zuckert, Scoutt & Rasenberger, f o r 

Norfolk Southern. 

MR. EDWARDS: Good morning. Your Honor. 

John Edwards, Zuckert Scoutt f o r Norfolk Southern. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t , very w e l l . 

A l l r i g h t , we have three d i f f e r e n t matters before us 

t h i s morning. 

Off the record. 

(Whereupon, the foregoing matter went o f f 

the record at 9:33 a.m. and went back on 

the reco7.-d at 9:36 a.m.) 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: We have three disputes 
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before us t h i s morning. Taking them i n any order, the 

f i r s t one i s on behalf of the Rail Bridge Terminals, 

New Jersey Corporation. A l l r i g h t , I'm ready to hear 

argument on t h i s Motion to Compel. 

MR. UTHOFF: Thank you. Your Honor. The 

Motion to Compel concerns seven interrogatories. They 

concern the structure and decisions that were made, 

part of the shared assets area i n North New Jersey, E-

Rail i n p a r t i c u l a r , and other terminals located i n 

t h i s shared assets area -- either geographically or 

being operated as part of the shared assets agreement. 

The questions we're asking f o r the basis 

of the decisions to make E-Rail an NS dedicated 

f a c i l i t y , make other terminals CSX dedicated 

f a c i l i t i e s . Some terminals were equal access and some 

terminals were part of the shared assets agreement. 

The only response we've received basically 

i s that a l l these decisions were reached through 

negotiations. I t ' s our opinion that that doesn't 

answer the questions on get t i n g to the basis on how 

those decisions were made. We have received a 

supplemental response on behalf of both NS and CSX. 
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In my opinion, the only information i n 

that response i s that E - r a i l was not chosen by CSX 

because i t didn't f i t t h e i r operational needs; which 

I think i s g e t t i n g more to the basis of these 

decisions, but the remainder of the supplemental 

response was s t i l l more of, these decisions were 

arrived at during the course of negotiations. 

And what we're seeking to f i n d i s how 

these determinations were made. The answer received 

i n terms of negotiations indicates that i t was more of 

a random process, but documents reviewed and the 

deposition t r a n s c r i p t s reviewed, reveal f o r example 

that the E-Rail f a c i l i t y has been earmarked to receive 

between $25 m i l l i o n and $35 m i l l i o n of improvement. 

I mean, since that i s the case i t ' s hard 

for me to believe that the only reason why that E-Rail 

was dedicated as an NS f a c i l i t y i s because, well 

that's j u s t how i t kind of f e l l out i n negotiations. 

I've also seen st r a t e g i c planning 

documents concerning the various aspects of the s p l i t -

up, and to the extent that there are reasons f or 

tr e a t i n g E-Rail d i f f e r e n t l y from other terminals i n 
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the shared assets area, the decision to have terminals 

as equal access and E-Rail not, I believe the 

questions c a l l f o r that information and I think we're 

e n t i t l e d to i t . 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Who's going 

to address i t f o r Conrail? 

MR. HARKER: Mr. Coburn and I w i l l . I ' l l 

lead o f f . F i r s t of a l l , may I ask a question about 

the information that you've mentioned with respect to 

capi t a l improvements and the like? I take i t that's 

from work papers i n the depository? 

MR. UTHOFF: I believe that was i n the 

McClellan deposition. 

MR. HARKER: Okay. And I'm j u s t asking 

for representation as to a level of c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y of 

that information so that we can advise the court 

reporter with respect to the t r a n s c r i p t . 

MR. UTHOFF: I couldn't t e l l you because 

I didn't have the l i s t on what was -- remained highly 

confidential and what was not. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Off the 

record, 
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(Whereupon, the foregoing matter went o f f 

the record at 9:40 a.m. and went back on 

the record at 9:40 a.m.) 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Your Honor, the 

tran s c r i p t f o r Mr. McClellan i s s t i l l c l a s s i f i e d as 

highly confidential and so any information that i s 

discussed with regard to Mr. McClellan's deposition 

would have to and continue to be, highly c o n f i d e n t i a l , 

and we would ask that the tr a n s c r i p t of t h i s hearing 

be so designated, 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Is everybody 

i n the room e n t i t l e d to be here? 

BY ALL: Yes, Your Honor. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Ms, 

Reporter, y o u ' l l label t h i s highly c o n f i d e n t i a l . 

MR. HARKER: Is i t possible. Your Honor, 

to j u s t label portions of the t r a n s c r i p t , because I'm 

not sure the entire t r a n s c r i p t needs to be highly 

c o n f i d e n t i a l . I don't mean to cause a l o g i s t i c a l 

problem and i f that i s a l o g i s t i c a l problem we can --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, how are we going 

to know when to apply the highly confidential? 
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MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, while we're 

discussing t h i s issue we could have the t r a n s c r i p t 

highly confidential and then when we move on to the 

other issues before Your Honor we could --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Oh, i s that what you 

mean? Oh, sure. 

MR. EDWARDS: That w i l l work. 

JUDGE LEVENiHAL: Oh, sure. We'll have 

two separate tr a n s c r i p t s : one highly c o n f i d e n t i a l f o r 

that portion, and then we'll advise the reporter when 

we go on the regular t r a n s c r i p t . 

A l l r i g h t . Mr. Harker. 

MR. HARKER: Thank you, Your Honor. Mr. 

Uthoff mentioned the responses that the applicants 

made to the discovery request, focusing on the 

negotiated aspect of the process here, and that can't 

be overstressed. 

The determination of the shared asset 

areas was the culmination of a lengthy and complex 

bargaining process between Norfolk Southern and 

Conrail, I'm sorry, I misspoke. Norfolk Southern and 

CSX. The result of which was an appropriate balance 
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between CSX to the benefit of both parties, both 

ra i l r o a d s , and the shipping public. 

I t was a product of horse trading, of 

compromise, of understanding. As I said, i t was a 

lengthy and complex process i n which the two railroads 

needed to allocate l i t e r a l l y dozens of Conrail-served 

f a c i l i t i e s . 

I t ' s impossible to pick apart i n any 

d e t a i l , an indi v i d u a l decision i n i s o l a t i o n when 

you're t a l k i n g about the kind of negotiation process 

that went on. Essentially what you'd need to be able 

to do i s , months a f t e r the fact, get in t o the minds of 

the negotiators as they were discussing a l l o c a t i o n of 

these p a r t i c u l a r properties -- or, I'm sorry, these 

p a r t i c u l a r shippers. 

There was r e a l l y no set of c r i t e r i a that 

e i t h e r party used to allocate r e s p o n s i b i l i t y to one 

party or the other. Mr. Uthoff wishes there were but 

there i s n ' t , and i n fact, he propounded some very 

general document requests along these same li n e s , and 

upon a review of our f i l e s we found nothing responsive 

to these p a r t i c u l a r document recjuests -- asking about 
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the applicant's decision-making process and so on --

that gives you a sense that there were no preconceived 

notions going i n t o the process. 

And as I said, u l t i m a t e l y the result was 

a product of a long negotiation. Both Mr. Hart f o r 

CSX and Mr. McClellan for Norfolk Southern, the 

p r i n c i p a l negotiators, were both deposed. You w i l l 

r e c a l l at one point, there was some concern that Mr. 

Hart's deposition may go for two days, and Mr. McBride 

and Mr. Wood on behalf of t h e i r c l i e n t s , sought a 

rescheduling. 

So obviously, t h i s deposition, Mr. Hart's 

deposition, was seen with a great deal of interest on 

the part of the other parties. However, Mr. Uthoff 

did not p a r t i c i p a t e i n that deposition. These two men 

were the key negotiators of the arrangements, and i t 

was at that point that i f there was going to be a 

probing of t h e i r mental processes as to why they made 

a p a r t i c u l a r decision one way or the other, that was 

the time to do i t . 

Now, as to the p a r t i c u l a r circumstances of 

E-Rail, which I would submit i s r e a l l y the only 
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relevant matter before us today, I'd l i k e to give you 

a copy of a l e t t e r that Mr. Coburn sent to Mr. Uthoff 

on October 7th. I'm going to give Mr. Uthoff a copy 

of the l e t t e r . 

And the issue with respect to E-Rail i s 

simply, why didn't CSX consider g e t t i n g access to E-

Rail a high p r i o r i t y i n the negotiations? Why was CSX 

essentially w i l l i n g to give Norfolk Southern sole 

access to that f a c i l i t y ? And that issue i s 

essentially addressed on the second page i n the f i r s t 

f u l l paragraph. 

And I ' l l j u s t read i t f o r the record. 

"One factor that CSX considered was that the r e l a t i v e 

e f f i c i e n c y of i t s access to a p a r t i c u l a r yard or 

terminal f a c i l i t y , p a r t i c u l a r l y f or double-staffed, 

intermodal, east-west t r a f f i c . One of the result s of 

these negotiations was that the E-Rail f a c i l i t y was 

assigned to NS. The operational advantages enjoyed by 

NS over CSX i n accessing t h i s f a c i l i t y was a very 

important consideration." 

So i n other words, with respect to E-Rail, 

Mr. Uthoff knows why CSX chose not to bargain for 
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^ 1 
access to E-Rail; because operationally there were 

2 
in e f f i c i e n c i e s and disadvantages associated with that 

3 
pa r t i c u l a r f a c i l i t y . So as to Mr. Uthoff's c l i e n t , ' 

4 
knows exactly why E-Rail i s not part of the shared 

5 asset area. 

6 
And I would submit that the d i s p o s i t i o n of 

7 
other f a c i l i t i e s i s simply not relevant to E-Rail. 

8 
Why another f a c i l i t y i n the area was considered part 

9 
of the shared assets area i s r e a l l y not relevant to 

10 
why CSX chose not to bargain f o r access to the E-Rail 

» 11 f a c i l i t y . 

12 
Now, I think i t ' s important to point out 

13 
that E-Rail had access to one c a r r i e r before t h i s 

14 
transaction -- that was Conrail. They didn't have 

15 
access to two c a r r i e r s ; they had access to one 

16 
c a r r i e r . And as a res u l t of t h i s transaction that 

• 

17 
won't change. There'11 be a new c a r r i e r . I t w i l l be 

18 
Norfolk southern, not Conrail. But i t w i l l s t i l l only 

19 be one c a r r i e r . 

20 
And I'm not sure yet, we haven't heard 

21 
yet, what E-Rail's theory of harm i s here, under which 

22 
they're somehow going to make t h i s discovery relevant. 
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We haven't heard that yet; perhaps Mr. Uthoff can 

inform us about that. 

To the extent though, that his theory i s , 

i s that they are disadvantaged because t h e i r 

competitors are get t i n g access to two c a r r i e r s as 

opposed to E-Rail which i s only having access to one, 

that's just simply not cognizable under Board 

precedent. 

I mean, the l o g i c a l extension of that 

argument. Your Honor, i s that every c a r r i e r -- I'm 

sorry, every shipper i n the Northeast which had access 

only to Conrail p r i o r to the transaction, i s now 

e n t i t l e d to have access to both Norfolk Southern and 

CSX a f t e r the transaction. And that's c l e a r l y not --

there's no precedent, no authority at a l l f or that 

proposition w i t h i n STB and ICC case law. 

And I ' l l j u s t conclude by saying that what 

the ICC and the STB look at i s preserving competition. 

They want to preserve competition. In other words, i f 

there was a s i t u a t i o n p r i o r to a merger where there 

was competition -- two car r i e r s serving a shipper --

they want to assure a f t e r the transaction that that 
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competition i s preserved. 

Their focus though, i s not on protecting 

competitors, and individual competitors, and that was 

what E-Rail was t a l k i n g about here. Thank you. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Coburn. 

MR. COBURN: I think that r e a l l y sums i t 

up. I have three quick points j u s t to add to that. 

F i r s t , as we said i n our interrogatory answer, our 

supplemental answer, balance was an importance factor 

i n these negotiations; that i s , balance between CSX 

and NS. 

And that part of the give-and-take was 

that some f a c i l i t i e s v;ere going to go to one carrier, 

other f a c i l i t i e s were going to go to another carrier, 

others again, as part of the give-and-take, were going 

to be shared. 

Second, we've gotten similar questions, 

si m i l a r to the question that was put to us by Rail 

Bridge from other parties i n t h i s case. Indianapolis 

wants to know and t h e i r interrogatories wanted to 

know, well why weren't they a shared area? Buffalo, 

Niagara area; why weren't they a shared area? Some 
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shippers have wanted to know, well why weren't -- why 

are they outside the shared areas? The 84 Mining 

comes to mind. 

But we've got l o t s of questions along 

these l i n e s , and we've been very consistent i n our 

answers and very t r u t h f u l and very complete i n our 

answers. The answer i s , t h i s was the product of the 

negotiation. These were hard-driven negotiations. 

This was the end res u l t . We haven't had others come 

here and say, you've got to t e l l us more. Some of 

those others have gone to depositions and asked our 

witnesses. Mr. Uthoff d id not. 

One last point j u s t to supplement the 

point about one ca r r i e r . They have one c a r r i e r now, 

t h e y ' l l have one c a r r i e r afterwards. The c a r r i e r 

t h e y ' l l have afterwards, NS, w i l l have a broader reach 

than Conrail does today. So r e a l l y , they w i l l be 

advantaged by the transaction. 

MR. NORTON: Your Honor, i f I might. I 

was j u s t reminded hearing Mr. Harker, of the fact that 

i n the UP/SP case before i t ruled, the fact that 

someone was not getting an improvement i n i t s 
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1 competition that another of the competitors was 

2 ge t t i n g , was ir r e l e v a n t . I t was not a factor to be 

3 considered i n the assessment of the transaction. And 

4 I believe they r e l i e d upon a sim i l a r r u l i n g i n the 

5 BN/Santa Fe case as well. 

6 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t , Mr. Uthoff 

7 MR. UTHOFF: Two aspects of that I'd l i k e 

8 to address. The f i r s t i s the l e t t e r which I received. 

9 And I agree somewhat with counsel's representation 

10 that as to CSX does t r y to answer the question, why 

11 did they d id not choose E-Rail. I don't think the 

12 answer i s quite as clear as counsel makes i t out to 

13 be, but I do acknowledge that t h i s an e f f o r t towards 

14 the type of information that we are looking f o r . 

15 In terms of relevance, I've read the 

16 precedent i n terms of not protecting competition, but 

17 we also have a very unique s i t u a t i o n here. In terms 

18 of the broad-brush picture of why shared asset areas 

19 were created, I think those questions have been 

20 answered, either through the work papers or 

21 depositions. 

22 I mean, that was a market-driven decision 
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and the North Jersey shared assets area, according to 

the court papers that I've seen and the depositions 

that I've read, was one of the most important aspects 

of t h i s deal because of the size of the market, and 

both c a r r i e r s wanted to have access to the shippers. 

What has happened i n the s i t u a t i o n , the 

shared assets areas which i s a novel idea to t h i s type 

of merger -- which i s also novel; taking one r a i l r o a d 

and s p l i t t i n g i t i n t o two Class 1 major railroads --

they've taken a big, broad geographic area, created a 

shared assets agreement for the operation of these 

lines i n that area, but accepted very few terminals i n 

that area, E-Rail being one of them. 

On top of that, f o r example, one of our 

competitors i s the South Kearny Yard where APL has 

t h e i r operations -- which was allocated to CSX. I t ' s 

not going to be operated as f a r as a shared assets 

area, but South Kearny was given equal access to NS. 

So there are issues as to competition, and 

i t i s our opinion that those issues need to be brought 

to the Board because of t h i s unique s i t u a t i o n where 

everyone i n a geographic region i s being given an 
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advantage over what they had before. You had one 

ca r r i e r , now they have two, but very few terminals are 

being accepted from that proposition or from that 

agreement. 

One of the s e l l i n g points of t h i s 

application i s that we've created these shared access 

areas i n these major markets so that a l l the shippers 

can benefit. Well, i f there's c e r t a i n business 

reasons or operational reasons why every terminal i n 

the area can't be equal access or can't be operated as 

a shared access area, that's what we need to k.iow. 

I f i t was random, we need to know that 

also. But we al.30 need to know why the quid pro quo 

was not being maintained, especially i n r e l a t i o n to E-

Rail and our competitors, which are w i t h i n 

geographically the same area, that are being given 

either operation as part of the shared assets area, or 

being given equal access to both c a r r i e r s . 

And to say that the only reason that 

happened was, oh that was a product of negotiations, 

that doesn't get to the answer of the question of the 

interrogatories, and so suggest that i t was our duty 

NEALR. GROSS 
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE.. N.W 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON. D C. 20005-3701 (202) 234-4433 



22 

to attend depositions, I don't believe that that i s a 

requirement to propound the interrogatories. 

The interrogatories seek a broader range 

of information than t e s t i n g the memory of one 

indi v i d u a l . To the extent that there were corporate 

p o l i c i e s beyond the memory of the i n d i v i d u a l that the 

interrogatories would pick up, and to the extent the 

individual won't remember an answer on that day but 

can review notes, review work papers, t a l k with other 

people who were involved with the negotiations, 

interrogatories would provide a more complete answer. 

Not to mention i n terms of the economy. 

I t seems the interrogatories might be the best way to 

t r y and get t h i s information. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: But what information 

you're looking f o r , Mr. Harker said that t h i s was a 

result of negotiations. They bargained f o r one point 

as against another point. What are you looking for, 

exactly? 

MR. UTHOFF: We're looking --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Work papers? 

MR. UTHOFF: There was -- at least my 
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review of the work papers, there weren't any. There 

weren't any free negotiation-type work papers that 

noted, here's a l i s t of the things we wanted to do. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, one minute; l e t ' s 

f i n d out. Are there any work papers, Mr. Coburn, Mr. 

Harker? 

MR. HARKER: No, Your Honor. The w r i t t e n 

discovery requests that were propounded by Rail Bridge 

requested us to search f o r those sorts of documents 

and as we reported, there were no responsive document. 

MR. UTHOFF: The only thing that I've seen 

i n terms of work papers were a f t e r the s p l i t had been 

made. Now, to suggest that, well everything was j u s t 

a product of the negotiation and that's the only 

answer, that suggests to me that there were no 

preconceived ideas of what NS wanted or what CSX 

wanted going i n t o the negotiations. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: But Mr. Uthoff, you have 

a problem. Mr. Harker i s representing here on the 

record that there are no work papers. I can't order 

him to produce work papers i f he says there are none. 

MR. UTHOFF: We're not asking f or him to 
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produce work papers. 

JTJDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, \/hat do you want 

him to produce? 

MR. UTHOFF: We want him to produce the 

answers to the interrogatories that request that to 

the extent there's information and reasons why there 

were differences i n -- reason.j why certain terminals 

were chosen to be part of the shared assets area, 

c e r t a i n terminals were chosen to have equal access, 

ce r t a i n terminals were not chosen to have equal access 

to the extent there are reasons f or chose 

decisions, we would l i k e those reasons. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, Mr. Coburn, who's 

going to answer that? 

MR. COBURN: Respectfully, we have given 

Mr. Uthoff the reasons why there was give-and-take i n 

the negotiating process, and --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Do you have any w r i t t e n 

documents that would set f o r t h your position, the 

pos i t i o n of the other parties, any arguments you were 

prepared to make i n negotiations? 

MR. COBURN: There were no work papers and 
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the only w r i t t e n documents I can point Mr. Uthoff to 

are our o r i g i n a l and our supplemental interrogatory 

answer. 

MR. UTHOFF: That is also only to CSX i n 

terms of the information as to why E-Rail was not 

chosen --

.JUDGE LEVENTHAL: You're seeking i t from 

who else, NS? 

MR. UTHOFF: NS. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Ms. Bruce. 

MS. BRUCE: Your Honor, that l e t t e r was 

sent by Mr. Coburn but i t was the applicant's 

supplemental response on behalf of the applicant. And 

jus t as Mr. Coburn and Mr. Harker have indicated, the 

decision on E-Rail was the result of negotiations and 

I think what Mr. Uthoff i s asking us to do i s a post­

mortem on those negotiations, and there was no 

corporate policy or l i s t of c r i t e r i a that were set 

out. I t was the result of onsite bargaining of a 

complex s i t u a t i o n i n which there was a give-and-take. 

And he's asked repeatedly f o r t h i s and 

we've t o l d him repeatedly that there are no work 
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papers and that t h i s was a negotiation process. And 

i f there was a misunderstanding that that supplemental 

response was not from Norfolk Southern, i t was 

intended to be. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Are there no memoranda 

or any other w r i t i n g indicating positions or 

arguments? 

MS. BRUCE: No, Your Honor, and I think 

Mr. U t h o f f s reference to what he's seen i n the work 

papers are work papers that are post-negotiation and 

post-decision that are carrying out what was 

negotiated, and not the lead to the negotiation but 

the a f t e r the negotiation. 

Ai:d that's what he's looking at -- once 

the f a c i l i t y i s assigned to a ca r r i e r , what they're 

going to do i n the future to improve i t , to put money 

i n i t , whatever i t i s . I think that's what he's 

looking at and he's t r y i n g to correlate that with what 

was done before. 

And what was done before was, CSX and NS 

were r i v a l s f o r Conrail and then there were 

negotiations. And i n those negotiations c e r t a i n things 
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were given-and-take, and j u s t as Mr. Harker said, i t 

was horse trading, and that's the bottom l i n e on i t , 

I believe. I think we have supplemented our response 

to the best that we can. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Wei] p o i n t , Mr. 

Uthoff i s looking f o r , were thera any po s i t i o n papers 

w r i t t e n for the negotiators --

MS. BRUCE: No, Your Honor --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: -- any agenda that they 

went i n t o a negotiating session with? 

MS. BRUCE: No, Your Honor, none were. 

MR. UTHOFF: Well, Your Honor, to say 

there was negotiations i s one thing, but to say that 

the negotiators had no preconceived idea of what they 

wanted to get out of the deal and the types of 

terminals that they wanted, or the types of agreement 

that were going to happen, I think i s two d i f f e r e n t 

things. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, what do you want 

me to order them to do? They're saying here they have 

nothing, and you're t e l l i n g me you don't believe them. 

MR. UTHOFF: Well, to make the 
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representation that, instead of ju s t saying that there 

was negotiations, say that McClellan on behalf of NS 

apparently, and Hart on behalf of CSX, had no 

preconceived idea or plan going i n t o chese 

negotiations upon choosing which terminals would be 

part of the shared access agreement, which weren't, 

and which are the equal access. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Let's f i n d 

out. 

MS. BRUCE: Your Honor, I think that i t 

goes without saying that when the negotiators went 

in t o the negotiation they wanted to get the best 

possible deal they could f o r the railroads, and t h i s 

i s what happened. I mean, i t was give-and-take. 

Maybe on day-1 they thought, you know, maybe we'll get 

t h i s , and day-2, maybe we'll get that. 

But the bottom l i n e was, i t was a give-

and-take negotiation and each party that was 

negotiating went i n there to see what they could get 

the most out of the deal. And that -- I think i f 

that's what you're looking f o r we can a l l say, we went 

i n to get the best we could, you know, on the d i v i s i o n 
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of the assets and the al l o c a t i o n of the lines of 

Conrail, and t h i s i s the bottom l i n e . 

MR. COBURN: And jus t to supplement that, 

we have said. Your Honor, that CSX took i t s p o s i t i o n 

with respect to E-Rail i n l i g h t of the operational 

d i f f i c u l t i e s of serving that f a c i l i t y f o r the CSX 

line s that i t w i l l be acquiring from Conrail. 

I don't think there's any secret about 

that and we've said i t i n our supplemental answers. 

So that was a consideration under which CSX decided, 

well we'll give that one to NS; maybe we'll get 

something else i n return. I t was -- that's the wa/ 

the bargaining went. 

MR. UTHOFF: That's exactly the type of 

information we're looking f o r . Your Honor. But that 

only answers two of the seven questions, and i t only 

answers i t on behalf of CSX. I realize that the 

l e t t e r was on behalf of both NS and CSX, but that 

statement only answers i t on behalf of CSX. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Let's go o f f the record. 

(Whereupon, the foregoing matter went o f f 

the record at 10:01 a.m. and went back on 
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the record at 10:05 a.m.) 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: In our o f f the record 

discussion I was t r y i n g to determine whether there was 

any sp e c i f i c items that counsel making the Motion 

wished me to order the other side to produce. We 

didn't reach any agreement on i t . A l l r i g h t , Ms. 

Bruce. 

MS. BRUCE: And jusc f o r the record, I'd 

l i k e to say that Mr. Uthoff has requested that we 

produce w r i t t e n documents and indicated that we had 

not considered producing w r i t t e n documents or 

whatever. But his document request number two 

s p e c i f i c a l l y asks us to produce a l l documents which 

r e f l e c t e d decision or analysis thereon by applicants 

to omit the E-Rail f a c i l i t y from operation under the 

shared assets area, shared assets agreement. 

And as to NS, we have said that NS does 

not have any responsive documents. I believe that CSX 

in i t s separate response says the same thing. 

MR. COBURN: That's correct. 

MS. BRUCE: So we've already indicated 

that we've looked f o r responsive documents that 
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r e f l e c t the decision or analysis used by the 

negotiators i n the decision, and that we have nothing. 

MR. HARKER: And jus t -- Your Honor, j u s t 

to supplement that, document request number two went 

to the E-Rail f a c i l i t y ; document request number three 

goes to the other f a c i l i t i e s i n the North Jersey 

shared assets area. And I ' l l read i t . 

The result documents which explain or 

r e f l e c t any decision to allocate r a i l terminals i n the 

North Jersey shared assets area as a dedicated NS 

f a c i l i t y , dedicated CSX f a c i l i t y , or a f a c i l i t y which 

w i l l be allowed equal access. 

So t h i s covers the other f a c i l i t i e s that 

Mr. Uthoff i s interested i n . CSX responded; CSX has 

no responsive documents. 

MS. BRUCE: And NS was not asked that 

question. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . You want us 

to go through each interrogatory and examine i t ? I 

think you have to t e l l me exactly what i t i s you want 

me to t e l l them to produce, you know, and then I ' l l 

consider your argument. But so far, they've said 
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they've given you everything they have, and I don't 

know what else there i s I can order them to do, 

MR. UTHOFF: Your Honor, I think the 

di v i d i n g l i n e between t h e i r answer and a complete 

answer i s , that i f there were no game plan, i f there 

were no reasons why one negotiator or the other chose 

to ask f o r c e r t a i n terminal equal access, then to t e l l 

us that. 

A l l they've said r i g h t now i s that the 

f i n a l deal was the product of negotiation, which i s an 

obvious answer. Of course the f i n a l deal was a 

product of negotiation. But f o r example, for E-Rail 

which I think i s responsive to our f i r s t two questions 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Let's take your f i r s t 

question. Your f i r s t interrogatory i s , explain why E-

Rail would not be operated as part of the North Jersey 

shared asset area. What do you want them to give you, 

other than the answer they gave you? That i t was a 

re s u l t of arm-length negotiations? 

MR. UTHOFF: I would l i k e i s -- i f there 

are any spe c i f i c reasons why E-Rail was chosen not to 
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be operated as part of the shared assets area, to give 

us those reasons; or i f there weren't any specific 

reasons or that they can't remember then, now, to give 

us that representation. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Harker? 

I don't know who's arguing. Either one of you may 

argue: Mr. Harker or Mr. Coburn. Can you answer that 

question? 

MR. COBURN: I think we have. Your Honor. 

I think i n our o r i g i n a l and i n our supplemental answer 

we answered the question by explaining that theie was 

a negotiation and i t was give-and-take, and for CSX 

there was a concern about operational issues with 

respect to E-Rail. So t h i s i s one that we gave and 

didn't take. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, he's now asking 

any specific reasons. Are there any sp e c i f i c reasons? 

MR. COBURN: That I think i s --

MR. UTHOFF: And i f that's the complete 

answer, then that's the answer. That's f o r CSX --

MR. COBURN: Operational consideration. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Okay. A l l r i g h t . Then 
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how about two? Explain the basis f or applicant's 

decision not allow equal access to the E-Rail 

f a c i l i t y by both NS and CSX. Their answer had been 

the same. 

MR. UTHOFF: As to CSX, yes. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Mr. Coburn? Again, the 

same? 

reasons? 

reasons. 

MR. COBURN: I t ' s the same. I t ' s 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: There are no specific 

MR. COBURN: There are no specific 

MR. HARKER: Other than -- Your Honor, 

other than what we've already stated, which I think i s 

very c r i t i c a l -- which i s that there were operational 

disadvantages associated with the E-Rail f a c i l i t y that 

made i t a f a c i l i t y that CSX did not have high on i t s 

p r i o r i t y l i s t . 

I think that i s c l e a r l y answered by the 

supplemental l e t t e r ; by the October 7th l e t t e r from 

Mr. Coburn. 

MR. UTHOFF: The only thing that troubles 
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1 me with the l e t t e r with regards to CSX, i s they've 

2 determined i t to be one factor -- and that's a quote 

3 from the l e t t e r . And i f that's the only factor and 

4 the factor that they can come up with now, then we'd 

5 also l i k e that representation. 

6 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Let's --

7 MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, j u s t -- oh, I'm 

8 sorry. 

9 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Let's f i n i s h with CSX. 

10 MR. HARKER: No, I think, you know --

11 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Is that the only factor? 

12 MR. COBURN: I think i t ' s the only 

13 specific factor. There were these general factors of, 

14 you know, the give-and-take factors, the --

15 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: You mean bargaining and 

16 negotiating? 

17 MR. COBURN: The bargaining and the 

18 negotiation and the horse trading. 

19 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . 

2 0 MR. UTHOFF: I f that's as complete as i t ' s 

21 going to get then that's --

22 MR. COBURN: Yes, and the sense that, you 
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know, obviously both ca.rriers of equal size c a r r i e r s . 

I t wasn't a s i t u a t i o n where one c a r r i e r had a huge 

advantage i n the negotiation over the other. They 

were both t r y i n g to reach a deal that r e f l e c t e d t h e i r 

roughly equivalent bargaining power. And that led to 

a general balance i n the area. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Edwards. 

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, what's being 

asked here, I'm not sure has a better answer than 

we've put f o r t h . When people get i n t o a room to 

basically, negotiate the al l o c a t i o n of a 14,000-mile 

r a i l r o a d and a l l the associated f a c i l i t i e s i n a short 

period of time, there are things enunciated, things 

thought about, positions put f o r t h , positions brought 

back. 

What happens one morning may be d i f f e r e n t 

i n the afternoon because of what was said i n the 

morning. What happened i n Detroit might make somebody 

fe e l a l i t t l e b i t easier about what happens i n New 

York. The give-and-take about a specific f a c i l i t y , 

and apparently what he would l i k e -- Mr. Uthoff would 

l i k e us to do, i s recreate the negotiation. 
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And I don't think that that's proper, 

especially i n an interrogatory sense, and i t ' s 

impossible. I f i t could be done i t ' s not appropriate 

fo r the interrogatory, and I don't think i t can be 

done. 

Because we're t a l k i n g about intense 

negotiations, about a ra i l r o a d that -- a Class 1 

r a i l r o a d i n the Northeast United States that -- 1 

mean, we can t a l k about the E-Rail f a c i l i t y and we can 

go on to the Kearny Yard, then we can go on to that --

but what's the association of Kearny Yard to the 

Monongahela, to the Detroit shared asset area, to the 

-- you know, i t j u s t doesn't make sense to go item bv 

item and say, what was the give-and-take on this? 

I t j u s t doesn't make sense. These people, 

over a short period of time, negotiated a very large 

transaction, and everything that's associated with i t 

-- everything else. And i t ' s not appropriate to t r y 

to pick apart. Mr. Uthoff wants c r i t e r i a so that he 

can argue that he needs to be i n the shared assets 

area or have equal access. 

You know, he wasn't. His c l i e n t was not. 
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But that i s not a reason for him to be able to t r y to 

force us to recreate a negotiation that happened over 

several days under intense pressure, and with a l o t of 

factors going i n t o i t . And I don't know that we 

should be doing t h i s . 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Uthoff, 

s h a l l we go on? 

MR. UTHOFF: I would l i k e to. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Then we're 

up to number four, i s that right? 

MR. UTHOFF: I think we're at r.umber 

three. 

•JUDGE LEVENTHAL: We're up to number 

three? Explain the basis for applicant's decision to 

allow portion of the Kearny Yard equal access to NS 

and CSX. 

MR. UTHOFF: My response i s going to be 

the same. Your Honor. I mean, to the extent that 

concerns f o r NS counsel, i f no one can rec o l l e c t or 

recreate those negotiations, that's the simple 

representation that needs to be made. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . 
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I think that's the 

representation that we did make. We said that --as 

Mr. Edwards very eloquently said; more eloquently than 

we said i n our answer -- that t h i s was a complex plan, 

a series of negotiations, a web of intermingling ideas 

and desires on each railroad's agendas, and we said 

that. I think that's what you wanted us to say; I 

think we said that. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Are you saying there's 

no specific basis? There are no memoranda s e t t i n g 

f o r t h position, no --

MR. COBURN: No, there are no memoranda, 

and inquiring of our clients -- I can speak for CSX 

and Mr. Edwards and Ms. Bruce can speak for NS - - the 

answer that i s reflected here i s the answer that was 

-- I didn't dream this up. We spoke to the clients 

about this. This i s what they t e l l us i s the right 

answer. I t was just a web of negotiations. 

MR. UTHOFF: Your Honor, l e t me give you 

a concrete example as to why that i s n ' t necessarily a 

f u l l answer. One of our chief competitors i s South 

Kearny Yards which APL operates -- or had t h e i r 
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f a c i l i t y at. The South Kearny Yard i s a CSX f a c i l i t y . 

APL i s an NS customer. 

South Kearny Yard i s not being operated as 

part of the shared assets area -- even though they are 

part of the geographic area they're not being operated 

as part of the shared assets agreement. But NS has 

been allowed equal access to that yard. 

Now, I think the representation that's 

being made i s , well there was no specific reason why 

NS wanted equal access to that yard, but I mean, I can 

speculate that they wanted equal access to that yard 

because one of t h e i r big customers was located at that 

yard. And to the extent there were these types of 

ideas or reasons why NS would request equal access to 

that yard as opposed to a d i f f e r e n t yard, then I think 

we're e n t i t l e d to know that. 

And the same thing f o r E-Rail; the same 

thing for the other ones that were part of the shared 

assets agreements. They're s t i l l -- i t ' s intense 

negotiations and there's tradeoffs, but i t ' s not going 

to be a random process with the negotiators. 

They're not j u s t going to say, well okay. 
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1 l e t ' s put a l l the terminals here and okay, I want t h i s 

2 one and you know, I ' l l throw them up i n the a i r and 

3 the ones that land on t h i s side of the l i n e are yours; 

4 the ones that land on t h i s side are mine. I can't 

5 imagine that that was the process. 

6 Maybe i t was. I f that's the process then 

7 maybe that needs to be the response to the 

8 interrogatory. But to the extent those ideas and the 

9 reasons for those positions are remembered or can be 

10 recreated, we're e n t i t l e d to i t . 

11 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Ms. Bruce. 

12 MS. BRUCE: Your Honor, I think i t goes 

13 without saying -- and I don't want NS to sound piggish 

14 about i t -- but NS wanted access to every yard that i t 

15 could get, and that's how i t negotiated and t h i s i s 

16 where the chips f e l l on that yard. 

17 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: What do you want me to 

18 t e l l them to give to you? 

19 MR. UTHOFF: I t ' s the same answer. Your 

20 Honor, To the extent there were spec i f i c reasons why 

21 NS or CSX requested equal access or would not allow 

22 equal access, we would l i k e to know that information. 
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JUDGE LEVENTHAL: But t h e i r answer a l l 

along has been that t h i s was a res u l t of negotiation. 

Each of them wanted a l l of i t but they obviously 

couldn't get a l l --

MR. UTHOFF: But except --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: -- and they bargain --

MR. UTHOFF: But CSX --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Wait. Isn't that r i g h t , 

Ms. Bruce? Is that your position? 

MS. BRUCE: Yes, Your Honor. I don't 

think NS or CSX went i n t o the negotiations saying, oh 

I ' l l give the other side whatever I can. I think they 

said, I ' l l take whatever I can, you know, negotiate. 

That's a corporate business person's position when 

they go i n t o negotiation; r e a l i z i n g that there w i l l 

have to be compromises, or to go i n aiming high and 

then you compromise. And I don't know what else we 

can say about that. 

MR. UTHOFF: But f o r example, CSX has 

given supplemental responses that, we didn't want E-

Rail because we looked at i t operationally and we 

decided we didn't r e a l l y want i t . That's more than 
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j u s t going i n and saying, well I want everything. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: But they're saying that 

they don't have any other specific -- they gave you, 

wherever they had a specific reason they're saying --

I'm not o f f e r i n g for them -- but I understand them to 

be saying i f they had a specific motive or reason they 

gave i t to you. 

MR. UTHOFF: Well, I haven't seen where 

there has been an inquiry as to the specific reasons, 

beyond j u s t saying, well i t was a product of 

negotiations. Because when there was a further 

inquiry with regard to CSX i t seems, there was other 

information that was able to be recalled. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, do you want them 

to make a specific inquiry as to each of these 

interrogatories? Is that what you're asking? 

MR. UTHOFF: Yes. I think that i s what's 

required. 

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, NS has we 

stand by our answer. 

MR. UTHOFF: Your Honor, I think what 

needs to happen then, i s that i f there's a 
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1 representation that an inquiry has been made and that 

2 these spe c i f i c questions were asked and that whoever 

3 the negotiators were had no basis, that's not the same 

4 thing as saying that these were the product of 

5 negotiations. 

6 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: No, but I t h i n k he's --

7 MS. BRUCE: Your Honor, I --

8 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: -- e n t i t l e d to a 

9 specif i c answer l i k e that. 

10 MS, BRUCE: Well, I don't think we can say 

11 that there was no basis when the basis for going i n t o 

12 the negotiations was to gain access to everything we 

13 -- each c a r r i e r could. I don't -- I think that i s a 

14 basis. I don't think we can say, we had no basis. 

15 Our basis was to negotiate the best deal we could get 

16 - - o r each railroad's basis was to negotiate the best 

17 deal they could get, and that i s a basis. NS cannot 

18 say there was no basis. 

19 MR. COBURN: And to supplement, or to 

20 r e i t e r a t e what Mr. Edwards said, what we'd have to do 

21 from our end i s gather i n a room, a l l of the people 

22 from the CSX side, a l l of whom might have s l i g h t l y 
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1 d i f f e r e n t ideas about t h i s even with the CSX team, and 

2 inquire of each one, you know -- and that i s n ' t our 

3 obligation. Our ob l i g a t i o n was to make a reasonable 

4 inquiry of our c l i e n t , which we did, as to what t h e i r 

5 considerations were, and we defined where they came 

6 out i n t h i s interrogatory answer. Your Honor. 

7 MR. HARKER: And Your Honor, you are 

8 exactly r i g h t . I mean, the proper way to get t h i s 

9 discovery -- and he had that opportunity -- was Mr. 

10 Hart and Mr. McClellan were both deposed and people 

11 did get i n t o these issues with them. 

12 And i f Mr. Uthoff wanted to probe t h e i r 

13 mindset and t h e i r decisions, he should have done i t 

14 under cross examination. That was his opportunity; 

15 not here as a part of t h i s interrogatory process 

16 MR. UTHOFF: Your Honor, but i t seems l i k e 

17 counsel has belied that argument since i f i t cakes 

18 getting several people i n a room, a l l the negotiators 

19 and ask them i f they had any input on t h i s issue, how 

20 i s deposing one ind i v i d u a l going to give me that 

21 answer? And to the extent on whether or not that i s 

22 a reasonable inquiry, i f that's what i t takes to 
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answer the interrogatories then that's what i t takes 

to answer the interrogatories. 

I haven't seen an objection -- there was 

no objection made that t h i s was going to be a 

burdensome or oppressive task. But what's happened i t 

seems l i k e , i s they haven't made enough of an inquiry 

or taken the e f f o r t to t r y and f i n d out i f there are 

answers to t h i s question, and instead have r e l i e d upon 

jus t the answers -- the b o i l e r p l a t e answer that, you 

know, t h i s i s j u s t a process of negotiations and we 

don't r e a l l y know. 

To the extent these negotiators can 

r e c a l l , then that could be said i n the 

interrogatories, and to the extent there was no basis, 

that can be said i n the interrogatories. 

MS. BRUCE: Your Honor -- I'm sorry, John. 

Your Honor, both CSX and NS have made available every 

witness that produced a v e r i f i e d statement i n the 

case. The operating plant people were put on, 

everyone was put on. We had over 40 witnesses. There 

were over 40 opportunities f or Mr, Uthoff to ask his 

questions to each one of those witnesses i f he so 
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1 desired. 

2 And we also, a f t e r he raised an objection 

3 to our answers to his request, we went back and went 

4 over these again with our c l i e n t . We went over them 

5 the f i r s t time and we went over them the second time. 

6 And I submit that i f he would --he could have asked 

7 those 40 witnesses every question, any question they 

8 wanted to ask, they were open to i t . And he didn't 

9 take advantage of that process. 

10 MR. EDWARDS: And i f I may supplement one 

11 other thing here, i t sounds l i k e i f we gave the answer 

12 that Mr. Uthoff i s looking fo r , how would i t look? I 

13 guess with regard to E-Rail i t would be on one side 

14 CSX says, operational concerns and on Norfolk Southern 

15 i t ' s , get whatever you can get -- and we got E-Rail. 

16 Kearny Yard, he wants us to say APL was the factor and 

17 - - o r these f i v e factors. 

18 But as we've explained, i t ' s not simply 

19 getting several people together and probing t h e i r mind 

20 as to what was i n t h e i r mind when they walk i n the 

21 door the f i r s t day. This i s an evolving process. 

22 This i s not a discussion about the d i v i s i o n of E-Rail; 

(202)234-4433 

NEALR. GROSS 
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N W 
WASHINGTON. D C 20005-3701 

(202)234-4433 



48 

1 i t ' s the d i v i s i o n of 14,000 mile's worth of track, the 

2 associated f a c i l i t i e s , what happens one day, you know, 

3 affects the next day. 

4 I t ' s an evolving process; there's not «. 

5 s t a t i c l i s t that can be given; i t ' s a negotiation. 

6 And so the l i s t , the answer he wants, doesn't e x i s t . 

7 I f he wanted to t a l k about, you know, thougnts, well 

8 we could have, but that's not. I t ' s j u s t , we can't 

9 give him any better answer than we have. 

10 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Let's go o f f 

11 the record. 

12 (Whereupon, the foregoing matter went o f f 

13 the record at 10:24 a.m. and went back on 

14 the record at 10:24 a.m.) 

15 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . You want to 

16 go to number four? Their answers f o r a l l of your 

17 interrogatories I believe, are going to be the same. 

18 And unless you can give me something more concrete 

19 than you have, I have to deny your Motion to Compel. 

20 MR. UTHOFF: Well, Your Honor, 1 think to 

21 the extent the answers were changed, i f they did get 

22 a l l the negotiators together and asked them these 
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questions, where's a l l t h a t information? 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, I don't t h i n k t h a t 

t h a t i s a proper area f o r i n t e r r o g a t o r y . 

MR. COBURN: I t would be more than g e t t i n g 

the n e g o t i a t o r s together. We'd have t o recreate the 

n e g o t i a t i o n . We can't do t h a t . 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: I can see t h a t when you 

have a n e g o t i a t i o n , p a r t i c u l a r l y a complex one such as 

t h i s , t h a t there i s give-and-take. I f they had 

memoranda I could have ordered them, and I would order 

them, t o produce them. They're saying they don't. 

They're saying t h a t people went i n t o 

n e g o t i a t i o n w i t h o u t any agenda, any w r i t t e n agenda 

except t o get whatever they could get. I don't know 

what I can order them t o do. 

MR. UTHOFF: I mean, t o the extent t h a t 

t h a t i s n ' t a complete answer, t h a t ' s my only 

h e s i t a t i o n , i s given the f a c t t h a t how i t played out 

there had t o -- you know, even though -- dur i n g the 

n e g o t i a t i o n someone has t o say, give me, yov^ know, 

dockside and I ' l l g ive you t h i s . ._id i f there i s no 

reason f o r t h a t then there i s no reason f o r t h a t . 
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JUDGE LEVENTHAL: You can't do that on an 

interrogatory. But what we'll do i s , we'll go through 

each of the other ones, we'll see i f there i s a 

d i f f e r e n t answer, and at least y o u ' l l have on the 

record that t h i s i s t h e i r answer. 

Now, of course, t h i s doesn't prevent you 

from making any argument or presenting any evidence 

that you l i k e before the STB. They'll rule on the 

relevance of i t ; t h e y ' l l rule on whether you p r e v a i l 

or don't. But on discovery, which i s what we're 

dealing with here, I don't see what i t i s I can order 

them to do other than what they've already said on the 

record. 

MR. UTHOFF: Well, Your Honor, i f Your 

Honor i s not i n c l i n e d to order them to t r y and obtain 

further information and to see i f there are further 

information as CSX had provided us -- or, as both 

parties have provided us with regards to CSX's 

position -- the only remaining response apparently i s 

going to be that i t was a process of negotiations. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: That has been t h e i r 

standard response. 
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MR. UTHOFF: I'm quite aware of that. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Why don't we put on the 

record the rest of your interrogatories and see where 

we go. 

MR. UTHOFF: Are we on number --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: I think we're on number 

four now, right? 

MR. UTHOFF: Number four requests the 

decision to make other terminals i n the shared assets 

area equally accessible to CSX and NS. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Your 

arguments are the same? 

MR. COBURN: Yes, Your Honor. They're the 

same for al'i . 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: And your representation 

on the record i s that you made inquiry of your c l i e n t s 

with respect to t h i s , and t h i s i s the answer that 

you're giving? 

MR. COBURN: Yes, Your Honor. 

MR. UTHOFF: And beyond what was given, 

there were no other s p e c i f i c reasons why those 

decisions were made? 
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MR. COBURN: That's correct. Your Honor. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . That's the 

answer of CSX; NS, your answer i s the same. A l l 

r i g h t , number f i v e . 

MR. UTHOFF: Number f i v e i s the decision 

to give CSX sole control over portions of the Kearny 

Yard, North Jersey, and Elizabeth Port. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Your answer i s exactly 

the same as you set f o r t h to the other four previous. 

You have made inquiry of your c l i e n t s and there's no 

spec i f i c information other than the ones you've 

already given? 

MR. COBURN: That's correct, Your Honor. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Number s i x . 

MR. UTHOFF: And number six i s the basis 

for the applicant's decision to give NS sole control 

over the Croxton E-Rail Yard. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: The answer i s the same? 

MS. BRUCE: Yes, Your Honor. 

MR. COBURl̂ : Yes, Your Honor. 

MR. HARKER: Aga in , though. Your Honor, 

w i t h respect t o the E - R a i l Yard - -
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MR. UTHOFF: I believe CSX has answered --

MR. HARKER: That's correct. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: We're including a l l the 

answers you've given --

MR. HARKER: Fine, I jus t wanted to be 

sure --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: -- and i n w r i t i n g . A l l 

r i g h t , number seven. 

MR. UTHOFF: And once again, to explain 

the analysis which applicants used to divide 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s f o r the yards located i n the North 

Jersey shared assets areas as between those which 

would be operated both by NS and CSX, and those which 

wouldn't be. Same answer. 

MR. HARKER: I t ' s the same answer. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: You're saying your 

answer i s the same as the same as interrogatory 1? 

MR. HARKER: Yes, Your Honor. 

MS. BRUCE: Yes. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . And there's 

no other specific item -- reasons? 

MR. HARKER: No, Your Honor, 
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JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Number 

eight, 

MR. UTHOFF: I t was only the f i r s t seven. 

Your Honor, that are i n dispute. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Oh, I'm sorry. A l l 

r i g h t . Motion to Compel then, i s -- I'm going to say 

remains moot, because you've got your answer's on the 

record to these --

MR. UTHOFF: I guess i t was granted by 

immediately answered? 

JUDGE LEVEi'iTHAL: To the extent you didn't 

get the answers you want, the Motion i s denied. A l l 

r i g h t . 

MR. UTHOFF: Thank you. Your Honor. 

MR. NORTON: Your Honor? 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Yes. 

MR. NORTON: Why don't we take a 5-minute 

break? 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Sure. A l l r i g h t . We'll 

stand i n recess f i v e minutes. 

(Whereupon, the foregoing matter went o f f 

the record at 10:30 a.m. and went back on 
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the record at 10:35 a.m.) 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Edwards, 

i s i t necessary to continue the highly co n f i d e n t i a l 

designation f or t h i s transcript? 

MR. EDWARDS: No, Your Honor. The counsel 

have agreed that the f i r s t part of the hearing today 

could be public and does not requires a highly 

c o n f i d e n t i a l treatment. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t , then. I'm 

in s t r u c t i n g the reporter to make the t r a n s c r i p t , t h i s 

conference, a public document. A l l r i g h t , we'll j o on 

to the Motion of the c i t i e s of East Georgia, Indiana, 

Hammond, Indiana, Gary, Indiana, and Whiting, Indiana. 

C o l l e c t i v e l y we're going to c a l l them the Four City 

Consortium, 

MR, NORTON: Your Honor, i f I might ju s t 

suggest. I think i t might be more e f f i c i e n t because 

of the common ground, to hear both Motions f i r s t , and 

I would respond to both at the same time. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . And we'll 

also consider the Motion on behalf of Wisconsin 

Central, Limited, and the Elgin J u l i e t and Eastern 
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Railway Company to compel discovery of certain 

information. Both parties seek discovery of the 

Indiana Harbour Belt Railroad Company. A l l r i g h t . 

MR. MILLS: Your Honor, I'm going to 

di r e c t you from the Northeast to the Chicago area, and 

i n order to set the stage for the Motion to Compel I 

need to t e l l you a l i t t l e about the four c i t i e s and 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t i n t h i s proceeding. 

The four c i t i e s i n issue ar a l l located 

i n Northwestern Indiana and they are bounded on the 

east by the c i t y of Chicago and the I n d i a n a / I l l i n o i s 

state l i n e . They are criss-crossed by r a i l l i n e s , 

including a vumber of east-west lines operated by the 

CSX, by Norfolk Southern, by Conrail, and by the 

Indiana Harbour Belt, or the IHB. 

And the concern the four c i t i e s have with 

t h i s transaction i s that the t r a f f i c may increase on 

cert a i n lines and may decrease on other lines , and the 

lines that may take the increase have l o t s of grade 

crossings and other problems. There may be other 

lines including Indiana Harbour Belt lines that have 

l o t s of grade separations and may be more appropriate 
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for concentrating t r a f f i c on. 

And the purpose of the discovery they are 

seeking i s to gain information as to the capacities of 

those various lines so that they can determine what i f 

anything -- what r e l i e f i f any they want to request 

from the Board i n t h e i r comments and requests for 

conditions which are due on October the 21st. 

They've taken several depositions and 

engaged i n some discovery against the applicants, but 

so far have been able to get no di r e c t information 

about the Indiana Harbour Belt, and to cure that 

problem they noticed the deposition of the General 

Manager of the Indiana Harbour Belt, Mr. Allen. 

As you can see from the correspondence 

that we provided you yesterday, the applicants are 

taking the pos i t i o n that they have no dominion over 

Indiana Harbour Belt and cannot require them to -- I'm 

not sure they said they can't require them -- but they 

don't f e e l they should ask them to either produce a 

witness f o r deposition or answer questions which we 

suggested as a possible compromise position. 

And our view i s that because the IHB i s 

NEALR. GROSS 
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 

1323 RHODE ISUND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINQTON, D C. 20005-3701 (202) 234-4433 



58 

owned 51 percent by Conrail, that Conrail personally 

has a r i g h t to appoint the General Manager, has a say 

i n the dispatching r i g h t s that CSX and NS w i l l both 

acquire as a res u l t of t h i s transaction; that the 

Board does have j u r i s d i c t i o n to require the appearance 

of an IHB witness at a deposition or to answer the 

questions. 

I want to i n p a r t i c u l a r , point Your Honor 

to the so-called Indiana Harbour Belt, or IHB 

agreement which i s included i n the application. I 

have a copy of i t i f you're interested i n looking at 

i t , but l e t me j u s t d i r e c t you to c e r t a i n parts of i t . 

There's a section i n that agreement f o r 

which the applicants seek approval, by the way, as 

part of the so-called transaction agreement. But 

there are several provisions i n the agreement that 

c l e a r l y indicate that CSX and NS are going to exercise 

dominion and control over the IHB a f t e r the 

transaction i s consummated. 

For example, i n section 2 on page 6, 

paragraph (b), r e f e r r i n g to the General Manager, i t 

says that Conrail, CSX, w i l l cause the persons 
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1 selected by CSX and approved by Norfolk Southern, to 

2 be elected or appointed as General Manager; that 

3 Norfolk Southern on certain notice can require that a 

4 d i f f e r e n t person be selected and approved or appointed 

5 as a General Manager. 

6 On page 7 i s a reference to dispatching, 

7 and the agreement says that dispatching of trainees 

8 over the IHB system w i l l continue to be the 

9 r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the IHB and performed l o c a l l y i n the 

10 Chicago area, but that CSX w i l l have the r i g h t to 

11 di r e c t the exercise by Conrail of i t s ownership r i g h t s 

12 with respect to the dispatching. 

13 And again, the Norfolk Southern can 

14 request the CSX to change the dispatching of the 

15 Indiana Harbour Belt. So when you look at a l l of 

16 those elements i t ' s p r e t t y clear that Conrail 

17 presently controls and exercises dominion over the 

18 IHB, and that CSX and NS w i l l do so by acquiring 

19 Conrail's 51 percent ownership share and d i v i d i n g i t 

20 equally between them. 

21 I also want to point out that the Board 

22 has determined that the IHB i s an applicant c a r r i e r 
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fo r purposes of the transaction. I t ' s not e n t i r e l y 

clear to me what that status means, but I had 

discovered yesterday that they are l i s t e d as a party 

of record i n one of the Board service l i s t s i n t h i s 

transaction. 

They have not, to our knowledge, f i l e d any 

pleading i n the case at a l l , so our assumption i s that 

they're a party of record merely as an applicant 

c a r r i e r . And i t i s for those reasons that we have 

asked the applicants to produce an IHB witness or 

answer questions rather than attempting to go d i r o c t l y 

to the IHB. 

I think that summarizes our po s i t i o n on 

the matter. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. HEALEY: Good morning. Your Honor. 

Thank you. As counsel has indicated, the issue that 

both of us have brought before you today i s somewhat 

sim i l a r , and that i s whether Conrail has, through i t s 

stock ownership, the a b i l i t y to get discovery 

responses from the IHB. 

The relevance of the information we seek 
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,-»'id the interests of our parties, of our c l i e n t s , are 

a l i t t l e b i t d i f f e r e n t . As a l i t t l e f u r t h e r 

elaboration on the s i t u a t i o n i n Chicago, Your Honor, 

the Indiana Harbour Belt i s one of three switching 

roads which i s located inside the c i t y of Chicago c i t y 

l i m i t s . The IHB i s currently owned 51 percent by 

Conrail and 4 9 percent by CP Soo. 

The Belt Railway of Chicago exists, and 

although I'm not e n t i r e l y sure of the ownership 

in t e r e s t s there, I know that CSX does have an 

ownership interest i n i t . The t h i r d terminal r a i l r o a d 

w i t h i n the c i t y of Chicago i s the B&OCT -- that's the 

Baltimore and Ohio Chicago Terminal -- and that i s 

sole l y owned, 100 percent by CSX. 

Subsequent to approval of the application, 

CSX i s going to have a substantial say i n the 

operation of a l l three of those c a r r i e r s . My c l i e n t s 

have a concern about the effect on competition that 

s i t u a t i o n w i l l have i n Chicago. That's an 

unprecedented s i t u a t i o n i n Chicago. 

And we w i l l be seeking i n our responsive 

application, the d i v e s t i t u r e of Conrail's 51 percent 
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ownership i n t e r e s t i n the Harbour i n t o a neutral 

e n t i t y . Quite frankly, I must be candid with Your 

Honor, that at t h i s time I am not c e r t a i n whether that 

neutral e n t i t y i s going to be one or more of my 

c l i e n t s or whether i t ' s going to be simply a t h i r d 

party of the Board's choosing. 

But i n any event, we don't f e e l that 

devolution of the control of even half of the Conrail 

share with CSX i s going to be a positive f o r 

competition w i t h i n the Chicago switching d i s t r i c t . 

In decision 10 i n t h i s proceeding, the 

Board pointed out that discovery i s governed by 4 9 CFR 

1114, and i n 49 CFR 1114.30 i t does say that any party 

may serve on any other party a recjuest to produce and 

permit the party making the request to inspect any 

designated document or to inspect a copy, test, or 

sample any tangible things which are i n the 

possession, custody, or control of the party on whom 

the request i s served. 

I f I understand the objections of Conrail 

c o r r e c t l y , i n essence they want to read out the phrase 

"control" from that and simply turn over to us 
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1 information and documents w i t h i n Conrail's specific 

2 possession or custody. 

3 In looking i n t o t h i s matter I must admit, 

4 Your Honor, I have not found a s i g n i f i c a n t body of 

5 Board precedents dealing with how the Board and/or i t s 

6 predecessor, the ICC, would i n t e r p r e t c o n t r o l . 

7 Fortunately, as you know the Federal cases 

8 use the same standard governing discovery of 

9 possession, custody, or control, and I think i t ' s 

10 clear from looking at a var i e t y of those cases that 

11 control i s the legal r i g h t to obtain documents 

12 requested upon demand. 

13 And I could go through a var i e t y of 

14 c i t a t i o n s playing around that same point. But the 

15 essence of i t i s not whether a party actually 

16 exercises control over the subsidiary or whether i t 

17 has the legal r i g h t to, or whether i t has the a b i l i t y 

18 to. And I don't think there can be any question that 

19 with 51 percent stock ownership that i n f a c t , Conrail 

20 controls the Indiana Harbour Belt, 

21 Moreover, Judge, there i s a specific 

22 authority f o r the proposition that i n fa c t , the 
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1 Indiana Harbour Belt i s not an independent operation 

2 of Conrail: i n the case Winston Network, Inc. versus 

3 Indiana Harbour Belt, which can be found at 944 F.2d, 

4 1351. This i s a 7th C i r c u i t case from 1991. 

5 The 7th C i r c u i t said, IHB has never 

6 functioned independently of i t s parent -- and i n 

7 r e f e r r i n g co parent i t ' s r e f e r r i n g to Conrail i n the 

8 case -- which has always, tor example handled i t s real 

9 estate contract. Now, i n that case they were not 

10 analyzing whether Conrail could be compelled to 

11 produce discovery w i t h i n the hands of the IHB. 

12 The case was a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t ; they were 

13 analyz.-ng a contract. But I think the point i s saying 

14 that some C i r c u i t has found that the IHB i s not an 

15 independent e n t i t y of Conrail. In decision 12 i n t h i s 

16 case i n fa c t , the Board referred to NS and CSX as 

17 partners c o n t r o l l i n g the c o n t r o l l i n g shareholder of 

18 IHB. Again, the Board has recognized that i n fact, 

19 Conrail i s i n fact, i n control of the Harbour. 

20 Sim i l a r l y , there have been other 

21 proceedings where Conrail's controlled the Harbour and 

22 has been referenced by the Board, and I w i l l c i t e your 
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1 attention to TCV, Inc. and NS Crown Services co n t r o l 

2 T r i p l e Crown Services. That's i n finance docket 32403 

3 i n a decision served November 26th of 1993. 

4 Rio Grande Industries purchase and 

5 trackage rates, Soo Line -- which i s finance docket 

6 31505. The e f f e c t i v e date of that decision was August 

7 22nd, 1990. And Indiana Harbour Belt a c q u i s i t i o n of 

8 l i n e of Chicago and Western Indiana. That was finance 

9 docket 31148 i n a decision decided September 15th, 

10 1988. 

11 A l l those decisions. Judge, recognized 

12 that i n fact, Conrail i s i n control of the Indiana 

l i Harbour Belt. Moreover, Judge, I think you have to 

14 look at the submission of the parties to date. Within 

15 the CSX operating plan there's a s i g n i f i c a n t set aside 

16 of material dealing with operations on the Harbour, 

17 In fact, CSX has submitted a separate 

18 v e r i f i e d statement on behalf of one of t h e i r witnesses 

19 which deals s p e c i f i c a l l y with the Indiana Harbour 

20 Belt. And although the v e r i f i e d statement -- I think 

21 i t ' s about seven pages long; i t ' s not great i n length 

22 - - i n fact, they did feel that i t was important 
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1 enough, t h e i r operations on the Harbour were important 

2 enough, to submit a separate v e r i f i e d statement. 

3 And that i s my argument, subject to 

4 discussing the specific interrogatory requests and the 

5 discovery requests we served. 

6 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . I guess I 

7 f a i l e d to note that the discovery requests a question 

8 here, made of Conrail, and with respect to the four 

9 c i t i e s , I take i t now you're j u s t seeking answers to 

10 your interrogatories rather than deposition, i s that 

11 correct? 

12 MR. MILLS: Your Honor, we proposed as a 

13 compromise, when counsel f o r Conrail f i r s t advised us 

14 that they were not inc l i n e d to produce Mr. Allen f o r 

15 a deposition, that we would be s a t i s f i e d i f the 

16 answers to certain questions that we propounded were 

17 given, and requested that the applicants through 

18 Conrail's counsel, obtained those answers to those 

19 questions. But the response was no, we don't f e e l we 

20 have any obligation to do that and so they did not do 

21 that. 

22 But the answer to your question i s , were 
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we to get answers to those questions, and there's also 

one document request, the four c i t i e s would be 

s a t i s f i e d and would have no need to pursue any fu r t h e r 

questioning of an IHB witness i n a deposition. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Norton? 

MR. NORTON: Your Honor, I have several 

points I'd l i k e to address, and they relate both to 

the opening merits of the question, whether Conrail 

should be deemed to control the IHB for purposes of 

discovery, which i s the ultimate question presented 

here. 

And also some questions about whether that 

i s an issue that Your Honor should be asked to or 

should be addressing at t h i s time, or even today. I f 

I might, I'd l i k e to just create some background. 

There are a couple of questions presented 

here. There's a question about whether Conrail i s 

obliged to produced an IHB employee to a deposition at 

the four c i t i e s ' request. Mr. Healey raises the 

question f o r the Elgin J u l i e t where he has -- he 

didn't r e a l l y get i n t o what his request i s . 

I t j u s t says discovery request - which we 
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f i l e d an objection last week -- contains an extensive 

set of 46 very far-reaching questions c a l l i n g f or a l l 

matter of f i n a n c i a l and highly confidential f i n a n c i a l 

information of and documents of IHB, 

A l l of which relates, i f we understand i t , 

to his argument he's going to make that i f the Board 

approves the transaction to impose a condition 

requiring that Conrail's 51 percent stock in t e r e s t i n 

IHB be sold to someone else, and t h i s discovery 

recjucdt i s a valuation of that stock. 

So that's the second discovery that we're 

t a l k i n g about. With respect to the Wisconsin Central 

I'm a l i t t l e puzzled because his f i r s t set of 

discovery requests for Wisconsin Central we haven't 

responded to yet, and I don't think there i s any 

question i n that f i r s t set that raises an issue about 

IHB. 

And t h i s I think r e f l e c t s a concern I have 

about orderly procedure and whether we're r e a l l y kind 

of at the point where we should be on t h i s issue - - at 

the point f o r Your Honor to address i t . 

F i r s t , l e t me j u s t take a step back with 
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reference to IHB as a party of record. I'd l i k e to 

ju s t --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Why don't we dispose of 

one thing at a time. You're saying that with regard 

to the Wisconsin Railroad, you haven't responded to 

the interrogatories as yet? 

MR. NORTON: That's correct. 

MR. HEALEY: Your Honor, i f I can address 

that. In f a c t , as far as I know that was true. I 

l e f t my o f f i c e yesterday afternoon to come here and I 

had not seen responses yet. I would note for the 

record that I believe the responses are la t e -- but .e 

have not seen responses yet, that's correct. 

And I can actually c l a r i f y the issue, i f 

I could please -- and I think t h i s i s an important 

point to bring up. I am here on behalf of the 

Wisconsin Central and on behalf of the Elgin J u l i e t 

and Eastern. There are EJ&E discovery responses that 

have been objected to on the basis of the f a i l u r e to 

have control over the Indiana Harbour Belt. 

So i t ' s correct that the f i r s t set of 

Wisconsin Central discovery requests do not seek 
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information on the Indiana Harbour Belt; that i n fact, 

i s correct. There are subsequent discovery requests 

which do raise Indiana Harbour Belt istrues which are 

not yet due f o r a response. 

However, one of the reasons I am here 

Judge, i s that there i s also pending discovery 

requests -- excuse me, answered discovery requests 

that were served by the I l l i n o i s Central. Those 

requests were served on September 12th and they were 

answered on October 3rd. 

I l l i n o i s Central i s one of my c l i e n t . i and 

I do need to give you j u s t a minute of background to 

explain why i t ' s important that responses to those 

interrogatories as to the Indiana Harbour Belt also be 

provided. 

Back on September 12th when that discovery 

was served, my f i r m does represent the I l l i n o i s 

Central; we represent Wisconsin Central; we represent 

the EJ&E. And at that time those three parties had 

come together upon t h e i r s imilar conclusions th.it i n 

fact, a competition w i t h i n the Chicago switching 

d i s t r i c t was going to be harmed by t h i s application. 
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1 and i n f a c t , they were a l l of a l i k e mind that what 

2 was needed was a d i v e s t i t u r e of the 51 percent stock 

3 i n t e r e s t . 

4 In order to begin to develop information 

5 relevant to that d i v e s t i t u r e , we served discovery on 

6 the applicants under the sub-number f o r the I l l i n o i s 

7 Central. Subsequent to the service of that discovery, 

8 Judge, the I l l i n o i s Central i n f a c t , d id come to an 

9 agreement with the Norfolk Southern. 

10 And as a r e s u l t of t h e i r agreement with 

11 the Norfolk Southern -- there's a number of f a l l o u t s 

12 to that -- but the primary f a l l o u t f o r today's 

13 purposes, I ium not able to come before you and t e l l 

14 you that on behalf of the I l l i n o i s Central I'm seeking 

15 to compel answers to that discovery. 

16 But what I would point out to you i s that 

17 i n fact, the discovery was intended to provide 

18 information that w i l l be useful to a l l three of my 

19 c l i e n t s . And i n f a c t , I think service of the 

20 discovery i n j u s t one of the sub-numbers i s consistent 

21 with the Board's discovery rules i n t h i s case, which 

22 say that -- and I do have the quote w r i t t e n down 
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somewhere -- but I believe i t ' s to the e f f e c t that 

duplicative discovery should not be served. 

We were faced with the s i t u a t i o n where we 

could have served the exact same discovery requests 

out under a l l three separate headings that didn't seem 

to comport with what the Board had set out i n i t s 

discovery rules. I t didn't contemplate the fact that 

i n fact, we'd be serving the i d e n t i c a l discovery 

requests i n three sub-numbers. I t ' s r e p e t i t i o u s , i t ' s 

duplicative, i t serves no purpose. 

I now f i n d myself i n the s i t u a t i o n where, 

because of my c l i e n t ' s agreement I can't be before you 

seeking answers on behalf of the I l l i n o i s Central, and 

yet the answers that should have been given to that 

discovery, i n fact are relevant to other c l i e n t s . 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: The r e l i e f you're 

seeki.ng here t h i s morning then, i s a generic r u l i n g 

that Conrail has control over IHB and are therefore 

required to answer your discovery. 

MR. HEALEY: That's a very f a i r statement. 

Judge. I think I view my purpose today somewhat l i k e 

a proceeding f o r a declaratory judgment order, i f you 
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would. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . So we're not 

addressing -- with regard to Mr. Healey's c l i e n t --

we're not addressing specific answers to 

interrogatories or objections, but j u s t to a r u l i n g as 

to whether or not Conrail i s obliged to furnish 

discovery regarding IHB. Is that correct, Mr. Norton? 

MR. NORTON: No, and that's what he has 

now said. This causes me even more concern than I had 

when I started, about the process that has brought us 

to t h i s point. Your Honor, as you well know, the 

discovery rules and the guidelines that govern t h i s 

proceeding, establish the procedure for ra i s i n g 

discovery disputes. 

And they have, since sometime i n August, 

made i t very clear that the procedure f o r doing that 

i s on Monday, or by Monday of the week i n which you 

want a hearing on the Thursday, you have to make a 

w r i t t e n , a telephone -- a w r i t t e n submission as to 

request f o r a hearing, contact the other side, and we 

have two days to put i n a w r i t t e n response i f we want 

and prepare for the hearing. 
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In t h i s case the issue has been i n the 

a i r . I t was raised, as Mr. Healey notes, i n early 

September, the IHB issue. There was nothing on 

Monday. I t was nothing on Tuesday. We got a l e t t e r 

from Mr. M i l l s yesterday afternoon and we got a l e t t e r 

from Mr. Healey a f t e r 5 o'clock yesterday. 

There were no phone c a l l s to discuss with 

us these requests. We're the ones who are the develop 

and the discovery party. The whole procedure has been 

disregarded and we haven't had r e a l l y , i n my judgment, 

the adequate opportunities, even abbreviated 

opportunity that the rules and the guidelines provide 

to address issues. And these are important issues. 

In addition, on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r issue, on 

the merits of the Conrail IHB discovery issue, we're 

not the only party that has an in t e r e s t i n that. 1KB 

has an i n t e r e s t and CP Soo also has an i n t e r e s t . And 

CP Soo i s represented by Mr. Mayo who, as I understand 

i t , agrees with the Conrail position, that Conrail --

that other parties should not be allowed to require 

Conrail to produce documents and witnesses of IHB just 

because i t owns 51 percent. 
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As I understand i t , he was out of town 

yesterday. He got a message to be here today to do 

what he could, but he cl e a r l y hasn't had an 

opportunity to be prepared to address the ultimate 

merits, i f we have to reach them. 

What I'm suggesting -- and I ' l l come back 

to the merits question -- but what I'm suggesting i s 

that the issue r e a l l y i s not r i g h t f o r decision on the 

merits of whether Conrail has obligations to produce 

IHB documents and witnesses; that the orderly 

procedure should be followed. We should have an 

opportunity. I think i t ' s an issue where a w r i t t e n 

b r i e f would be appropriate, and resolution of that 

question to be deferred u n t i l early next week. 

But that's the procedural --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: I don't think you ha/e 

to go further. Your objection i s you don't think we 

should entertain t h i s Motion at t h i s time because the 

moving parties didn't follow the discovery guidelines, 

i s that right? 

MR. NORTON: That's r i g h t . 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Mr. Norton has a strong 
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point. 

MR. MILLS: Let me only say that the basis 

on which we sought to depose Mr. Allen i n fu r t h e r 

request, was set f o r t h i n the deposition notice, and 

the l e t t e r that was sent yesterday did not add to that 

at a l l . So he has had actual notice of the p o s i t i o n 

and the reasoning. 

And I suppose i t ' s technically correct 

that we have not put anything i n w r i t i n g other than 

the requests wi have made u n t i l yesterday, but he has 

been aware of the issue f o r at least two weeks. He 

was aware that we had planned to come to the Board 

with t h i s l a s t week -- we attempted to work out a 

compromise and did not. 

I f Your Honor wants to postpone i t u n t i l 

next week, you know, that's f i n e . We'll have to l i v e 

with that. But i t appears t o be exu l t i n g form over 

substance, i n a l l honesty. 

MR. MAYO: Your Honor, I f I might be 

heard? 

.TUDGE LEVENTHAL: Yes. 

MR. MAYO: My name i s George Mayo. I'm 
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here on behalf of Canadian Pacific parties. I came i n 

t h i s morning and sat down on that side of the room 

because I normally i d e n t i f y with that camp as opposed 

to t h i s camp, and Mr. Norton had to remind me that I 

needed to change camps for the day. 

And the reason i s , as I think you probably 

know, Canadian Pacific i s a responsive applicant i n 

t h i s case. Canadian Pacific i s one of the two major 

Canadian Railroads; the other one being Canadian 

National, Mr. Osborn's c l i e n t . Canadian Pacific has 

two major subsidiaries i n the United States: the 

Delaware and Hudson which operates i n the Northeast, 

and the Soo Line Railroad which operate i n the 

Midwest. 

Soo Line owns 4 9 percent of the Indiana 

Harbour Belt -- the e n t i t y as to which we're 

discussing the discovery of IHB today. I found out 

about t h i s a f t e r having been i n Federal Court here a l l 

day yesterday and a r r i v i n g back at National A i r p o r t at 

11 o'clock l a s t night. I checked my voice mail t h i s 

morning and found that I was supposed to be here f o r 

t h i s hearing t h i s morning. I scrambled around to see 
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what I cold do to get background information as i t 

pertains to the IHB. 

We have not had time to prepare to address 

t h i s issue. I w i l l t e l l you that i t i s Canadian 

Pacific's position by v i r t u e of Soo's 49 percent 

ownership of the IHB, that although Conrail quite 

c l e a r l y owns the majority of the stock of the IHB, 

that majority ownership does not allow Conrail to 

ess e n t i a l l y speak on behalf of IHB or make u n i l a t e r a l 

determinations as to how IHB should respond to 

discovery requests. 

And i t i s our pos i t i o n and w i l l be our 

posi t i o n when we rr.eet t h i s issue -- which I suggest i t 

would be next week -- that any discovery request that 

would be addressed to IHB should go d i r e c t l y to IHB 

and not through Conrail. Because we think that i f 

discovery requests are addressed to Conrail i n an 

e f f o r t to obtain discovery from IHB, Canadian Pacific 

doesn't have an opportunity to have i t s interests as 

i t pertains to the IHB as a separate, corporate e n t i t y 

which observes a l l corporate f o r m a l i t i e s , which has 

i t s own Board. 
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Soo has representatives on the Board, Soo 

has a voice i n the management of the IHB, and for a l l 

those reasons we are going to oppose the notion that 

Conrail can be the vehicle for obtaining discovery as 

i t pertains to IHB. Thank you. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, the discovery 

guidelines are more of a technical u n i t . As counsel 

have appeared before me i n t h i s proceeding know that 

I t r y to accommodate parties, and although i t was 

short notice to me, too, i f everybody agreed, I'd be 

pe r f e c t l y w i l l i n g to hear argument t h i s morning 

But other than that, I think Mr. Norton's 

p o s i t i o n and Mr. Mayo's position i s unassailable, so 

i t ' s something we'll have to take up next week. 

MR. HEALEY: Your Honor, i f I could ask. 

I'm not clear exactly what i t i s that we didn't comply 

with i n order to properly put t h i s --

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: You were supposed to 

notice t h i s on Monday of the week i n which you want 

the discovery conference to be held. 

MR. HEALEY: And my understanding was that 

t h i s week, because the appearance today was on 
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J 

1 Thursday, my understanding from making the telephone 

2 c a l l that I have co make to i n i t i a t e t h i s , was that a 

3 c a l l on Tuesday was an acceptable c a l l . Further, I 

4 called Pat Bruce and l e f t her a message on Tuesday 

5 t e l l i n g her that I was going to be here and t h i s was 

6 the matter I was going to present before you. 

7 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Well, I don't think Pat 

8 Bruce has aut h o r i t y to decide whether or not you've 

9 conformed to the discovery guidelines. Her duty i s 

10 administrative, 

11 MR, HEALEY: Your Honor, with a l l due 

,12 respect, we are 12 days out from p u t t i n g i n a 

13 responsive application. Now, i f we have to wait 

14 another s i x days before we even get a r u l i n g on t h i s 

15 issue 

16 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: You know, the other side 

17 has to have a r i g h t to reply. 

18 MR. HEALEY: With a l l due respect --

19 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: -- and we're working --

20 MR. HEALEY: -- what did they think we 

21 were coming here to t a l k about today? We've made t h i s 

22 issue clear to them. They have put f o r t h i n several 
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discovery responses that they w i l l not answer 

questions on behalf on Conrail. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: I considered that the 

guidelines were adopted by the parties. I issued the 

order adopting them but i t was the parties that 

furnished me with the order. My understanding, i t was 

on consent. I believe we did at one of our 

conferences, as a matter of fact, and they have to 

pr e v a i l . 

The fact i f we're working on short time, 

everybody i s . You know, I give you a r u l i n g when you 

come before me; I give you a r u l i n g the very same day. 

And then we have the 3-day period f o r appeal and then 

a 3-day period to answer an appeal to the Board from 

my rul i n g s . Everybody's working on short time. 

I'm going to sustain Mr. Norton's 

objection and we'll take t h i s up next week. However -

- l e t ' s go o f f the record f or a moment. 

(Whereupon, the foregoing matter went o f f 

the record at 11:08 a.m, and went back on 

the record at 11:10 a.m.) 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: In our o f f the record 
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discussion I t r i e d to see i f an amicable resolution of 

t h i s dispute can be reached. Counsel w i l l confer and 

see i f such a resolution can be had. 

A l l r i g h t , i s there anything else before 

us t h i s morning? 

MR. MILLS: Your Honor, could I give you 

a copy of the Indiana Harbour Belt agreement that I 

referenced i n my presentation? And I ' l l happy to get 

a copy for the applicants as well . 

JXTOGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. MILLS: I t ' s part of the application 

i n Volume 8(c). 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Let the 

record note that counsel has furnished me with a 

document, "Agreement r e l a t i n g to contractual r i g h t s 

and ownership interests of Consolidated Rail 

Corporation with respect to the Indiana Harbour Belt 

Railroad Company", and that he's furnished a copy of 

t h i s document to applicants. Is that correct? 

MR. MILLS: Yes. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Then we have now, 

without any fur t h e r notice, a conference scheduled for 
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1 next Thursday. I f the parties decide that we don't 

2 need such a conference, y o u ' l l advise my law cl e r k i n 

3 the usual manner, i s that correct? 

4 MR. NORTON: Your Honor, j u s t -- next 

5 Thursday -- next week i s -- Monday i s a holiday. 

6 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Yes, Monday i s Columbus 

7 Day. 

8 MR. NORTON: I'm not sure whether that 

9 should have a bearing on the timing of --

« 
10 MR. MILLS: Normally they're held on 

11 Wednesdays, I thought. 

J 12 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: No, Thursday. They were 

13 changed; i t was o r i g i n a l l y Wednesday. 

14 MR. NORTON: There may be other parties 

who would be seeking to put things on the agenda. 

16 I t ' s a cjuestion of whether the day f o r notice should 

17 be Tuesday, there may be a hearing on Friday next 

18 week? 

19 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: I'm available i f --

20 MR. MILLS: Your Honor, given the time 

21 crunch we're under, I think i t ' s appropriate to go 

^ 22 forward on Tuesday -- or on Thursday, excuse me. 
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D 

1 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Why don't we 

2 keep the conference date as Thursday. We'll change the 

3 date of not i c e from Monday t o Tuesday. A l l r i g h t ? 

4 MR. NORTON: Well, the other way would be 

5 change i t t o Friday. 

6 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: No --

7 MR. NORTON: For t h i s -- people who want 

8 t o put something on the agenda f o r next Thur.sday 

9 should give n o t i c e by the end of -- close of business 

10 t h i s Friday. 

11 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: How are they going t o 

12 know i t , though? Today i s Thursday. 

13 MR. NORTON: Well, we could get out a 

14 n o t i c e t h i s afternoon. 

15 MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, we could put out 

16 a n o t i c e of the hearing which w i l l be h e l d next 

17 Thursday t h a t i s now scheduled, as we normally would 

18 next Monday. And include i n t h a t n o t i c e t h a t anybody 

19 wishing t o b r i n g matters before Your Honor, should do 

20 so by close of business on Friday. 

21 JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Do you t h i n k t h a t ' s 

22 f a i r ? 
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MR. NORTON: Well, i t ' s uot a big 

ob l i g a t i o n for someone to give notice that they have 

an issue. Otherwise, i t ' s cuts i n t o our -- I mean, i t 

cuts down from two days to one day, our chance to 

respond. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: You do pretty well off 

the cuff. We've been together for the past three 

months now. 

MR. NORTON: Win some; lose some. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Any objections to this? 

Unfortunately, we only have two other parties here 

now. 

MR. COBURN: There are only a limited 

number of parties for discovery outstanding at this 

relatively late stage. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: Are there? 

MR. COBURN: There are several. 

MR. MILLS: I suspect that most parties 

are busy writing their comments at this point. 

MR. COBURN: I'm not aware of any issues 

percolating out there i n the sense of l e t t e r s that 

would suggest that anybody's going to bring anything 
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i n - -

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . I ' l l go 

along. I f anybody objects I w i l l be l i b e r a l i n 

accepting additional notices on Tuesday. 

MR. EDWARDS: And we w i l l . Your Honor, get 

out the notice cjuickly -- today. 

JUDGE LEVENTHAL: A l l r i g h t . Very w e l l . 

A l l r i g h t , then that's what we have before us. The 

conference stands closed. 

(Whereupon, the Discovery Conference was 

closed at 11:14 a.m.) 
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